
From: Hodgson, Scott A. <Scott.Hodgson@terracon.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 1, 2021 7:06 AM 
To: Saliares, Gwen N - DNR 
Cc: Pelczar, Jennifer S - DNR; Chronert, Roxanne N - DNR; Paul Zuege 

(zigjigs@gmail.com) 
Subject: RE: REMINDER: Mitigation System Documentation & Insurance Search 

Results by 8/31/21 for Dry Cleaners Etc, BRRTS #02-69-552218 
Attachments: SWAT.102 E Cook St New London WI 54961 OMM Post Installation 

Report.pdf; Exterior Blower and Stack.pdf; Exterior Blower.pdf; Drop Point 
and vac point 4.pdf; Vacuum Map.063021.final.pdf; Ins Policy.pdf; FW: 
Important information regarding your recent service request to The 
Hartford for policy: 86SBAPH1140 [CONFIDENTIAL] (Encrypted Delivery); 
RE: Important information regarding your recent service request to The 
Hartford for policy: 86SBAPH1140 [CONFIDENTIAL] (Encrypted Delivery); 
Request for Information 

 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization.  
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is 
safe. 

 

Gwen, 
 
A single suction point sub-slab depressurization system along with 10 vacuum monitoring points was 
installed at the site on June 30, 2021, but was not hard-wired in and therefore operable full-time until 
August 17, 2021. The suction point was installed in the east part of the building near the former dry 
cleaning machine location. An installation Report and O & M Manual from the contractor, SWAT 
Environmental is attached. Note that the map included in the report is not accurate, refer to Terracon’s 
map. Several photos of the system are also attached. The system was temporarily operated after 
installation on June 30, 2021, and the vacuum was tested at the array of ¼-inch diameter vacuum 
monitoring points, which are capped with a flush-mount plug when not being tested. In addition, 
volatile organic compounds were tested at each vacuum point, the suction point, and the existing vapor 
monitoring point VP-1 with a photoionization detector (PID) and methane (CH4), carbon dioxide (CO2), 
and oxygen (O2) were measured with a multigas meter. The vacuum monitoring points, drop point, and 
vacuum/air monitoring results are presented on the attached map.  
 
Terracon has been pursuing the insurance policy information with numerous phone calls and emails all 
summer. A copy of the insurance invoice from 1984 showing the policy number is attached. We started 
with the local office that had handled the insurance in the past and got passed us to various Hartford 
offices all over the country. We sent them (several times) the attached photo showing the policy 
number. Attached are a few of the emails we had with them including the last one received from them 
on August 31, 2021, again saying that the policy number was incorrect. There appears nothing more we 
can do with this.  



 
Scott A. Hodgson, P.G.  
Senior Project Manager I Environmental Services  
Terracon  
9856 S. 57th Street I Franklin, WI 53132  
D (414) 209 7640 I F (414) 423 0566 I M (920) 791 9206  
sahodgson@terracon.com I www.terracon.com  
 
 
 

From: Hodgson, Scott A.  
Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 4:24 PM 
To: Saliares, Gwen N - DNR <gwen.saliares@wisconsin.gov> 
Cc: Pelczar, Jennifer S - DNR <Jennifer.Pelczar@wisconsin.gov>; Chronert, Roxanne N - DNR 
<Roxanne.Chronert@wisconsin.gov>; Paul Zuege (zigjigs@gmail.com) <zigjigs@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: REMINDER: Mitigation System Documentation & Insurance Search Results by 8/31/21 for 
Dry Cleaners Etc, BRRTS #02-69-552218 
 
Gwen, 
 
We just received information from both the system installation contractor and the insurance company 
today. You will receive a summary email with the info requested before 8 am tomorrow. 
 
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
 
 
 

From: Saliares, Gwen N - DNR <gwen.saliares@wisconsin.gov>  
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 3:51 PM 
To: Hodgson, Scott A. <Scott.Hodgson@terracon.com>; Paul Zuege (zigjigs@gmail.com) 
<zigjigs@gmail.com> 
Cc: Pelczar, Jennifer S - DNR <Jennifer.Pelczar@wisconsin.gov>; Chronert, Roxanne N - DNR 
<Roxanne.Chronert@wisconsin.gov> 
Subject: REMINDER: Mitigation System Documentation & Insurance Search Results by 8/31/21 for Dry 
Cleaners Etc, BRRTS #02-69-552218 
Importance: High 
 
Good afternoon,  
 
I am reaching out to remind you that documentation, depicting information about the vapor mitigation 
system installed at 102 E Cook St, should be submitted by the end of the month (60 days after 
installation). I understand you have limited funding so an email version of that documentation is 
acceptable; make sure to include some photos and any applicable figures. Additionally, DNR is 
requesting you report the results of your search into Mr. Zuege’s environmental insurance policy by the 



end of the month. Those results can be included with the mitigation system documentation email or as a 
separate submittal.  
 
I will be on vacation next week, so if you have any questions about what to include for the mitigation 
system documentation please reach out to our vapor intrusion expert Josie Schultz. Thank you,  
 
We are committed to service excellence. 
Visit our survey at http://dnr.wi.gov/customersurvey to evaluate how I did. 
 

Gwen Saliares 
Hydrogeologist 
Remediation and Redevelopment Program  
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
625 E County Rd Y, STE. 700 
Oshkosh, WI 54901 
Phone: (920) 510-4343 
gwen.saliares@wisconsin.gov  
 

 dnr.wi.gov 

    

 
 

Terracon provides environmental, facilities, geotechnical, and materials consulting engineering services 
delivered with responsiveness, resourcefulness, and reliability.  

 

Private and confidential as detailed here (www.terracon.com/disclaimer). If you cannot access the 
hyperlink, please e-mail sender.  



SWAT Group lnc.
41 1 E. Wisconsin Ave.
Suite 1280
Milwoukee, Wl 53202 ENVIRONMENTAL

Midwest Region Headquarters
'16680 W Clevelqnd Ave, STE C
New Berlin, Wl 5315,|
Office: 262-754-2211
www.swqt-rodon.com

A

8/20/2021

We ore pleosed to provide you with on Operotion ond Mointenonce Plon/Post instollotion Report for (l) sub-slob
depressurizotion systemsl (SSDS) instolled ot the following oddress,

L02 E Cook St, New London, Wl 54961

One sub-slob depressurizotion system wos instolled ot the property locoted ot 102 E Cook St, New London, Wl 54961. The
system utilizes Schedule 40, 3" PVC pipe ond I Fontech RN4 model fon.

The SSDS system is locoted on the reor of the building (refer to finol drowing) ond is routed to the exterior of the building with
the fon locoted ouiside. The fon insfolled on this system is o RN4 model fon designed for high stotic pressure. The tight sub-slob
moteriol required the high stotic pressure fon thot includes on interior diol to control the output of the fon. The fon is on the high
setiing due to lhe tight soils. An interior gouge wos instolled next the interior piping (refer to finol drowing) to monitor fon is
operoting properly. The system wos completed on 6/3O/2021 .

This OM&M/Post lnstollolion Reporl does not include informotion regording electricol work. Electricol work wos performed by
o third-porty electricion supplied by SWAT Environmentol. Pleose refer to electricions who performed work if mointenonce
needs to be performed on those components of the system. Electricol wos completed on 8/17 /2021 .

Suburbon Electric- 920-7 39 - 5 1 56- www.surburbonenterprises.com

A third port is conducting pressure field extension tests. SWAT Environmentol instolled I I different vopor monitoring points
(refer to finol drowing). SWAT Environmenlol requesls occess to those results for record keeping purposes,

The contents of this Operotion ond Mointenonce Plon should be followed diligently, with periodic visuol inspections of the fons
ond pressure gouges' We recommend recording the stotic pressure quorterly. All systems hove o visuol pressure gouge ottoched
to the interior section of piping. They ore lobeled os o pressure gouge, ond they include o stondord lobel describing how to
interpret the gouge. Bolh fons ore worronled for five yeors. Workmonship is olso covered under o five yeor worroniy.

Questions regording this Operotion ond Mointenonce Plon, or ony system obnormolities or molfunctions, sholl be directed to:

SWAT Group lnc., Midwest Region
(262\7s4-22r1

swatenv@swat-radon.com

Air quolity retesting ond o service coll should occur in the evenl of moior slructurol chonge or neorby construction work (primorily
blosting), porticulorly ony type of work in which the foundotion is breoched or exponded.

Thonk you for your ottention to these procedurol recommendotions, We sincerely oppreciote your business.

Sincerely,

George Boolh, Regionol Tech Monoger, Midwesl Region
AARST/NRPP Mitigotion lD- 102258-RMT AARST/NRPP Meosurement lD- lO994Z-RT



SUB SIAB SYSTEM OPERATION

Operolion: Vopor mitigotion systems ore designed lo operote 24 hours per doy, 7 doys per week, except for brief
periods of time when the system moy be disconnected from lhe power source, de-energized, ond locked out
for routine mointenonce or service.

Aclivotion: A sub-slob depressurizotion syslem is octivoted when the circuit breoker is octive ond rhe mitigotion fon is
plugged into o duplex GFCI receptocle, or directly hord wired. Activotions ore to be conducted by or with
o mitigotion professionol. Under no circumstonces is this system to be disconnected or deoctivoted
permonently without first contocting on AARST/NRPP Cerrified Vopor Mitigotion Professionol.

Deoctivotion: ,A sub-slob depressurizotion syslem moy be sofely deoctivoted by first disconnecting the mitigoiion fon from
lhe duplex GFCI receptocle ond plocing o prolective cover over the mole plug to prevent it from being
reinserted ond then flipping the circuit breoker to the off position. We recommend securing o lockout cover
which identifies the system is being serviced ond prevenls lhe breoker from being re-octivoted.

SSDS DIAGNOSTIC REFERENCE

A SSDS should be inspected once every three (3) months for operolion, ond o stotic pressure reoding token ond recorded. There
ore some instonces when on AARST/NRPP Certified Mitigotion Professionol should be contocted os soon os possible:

l. The mitigotion fon is not operotionol, or lhe Monometer is registering outside of the recommended operoting ronge.
(<<.0.5" to 4.75" for RN4 fon>>). First check the electricol connection ond moke sure thot the circuit breoker is set
to "on".

2. The mitigotion fon is vibroting obnormolly (beyond the subtle vibrotion of normol operotion), is moking o "screeching"
or "grinding" sound, or, is unusuolly hot to the touch.

3' The electricol wire hos been domoged or oltered, or the fon hos been vondolized or is no longer present.
4. There ore visible crocks in the suction line or venl stock piping, or piping is no longer structurolly supporied.
5. There ore visible crocks in or missing moteriol f rom the seol where lhe suction line enters the collection chomber.
6' Moior structurol chonges hove been mode lo the building, or construction hos occurred which offects the foundotion.
7' ln the evenl the property hos chonged ownership, worronties moy be tronsferred to the new owner without odditionol

chorge.

SSDS: ORIGINAL STARTUP sYs COMPONENTS AND SETTINGS

System#/Unit System #l

Pressure
Gauge
Location

Fan Model

Fan Location

Original Fan
wc'

Located
next
interior
piping

RN4

Exterior

4.4

to



SSDS INSPECTION/MAINTENANCE LOG EXAMPLE

Yeor Qtr I Qrr 2 Qrr 3 Qtr 4
Sys. #l Monitor WC"

Seoled ltems
Piping/Lobels
Noted concerns
Lost Rodon Test (ot
leost every 2
yeors)

Sys. #2 Monitor WC"
Seoled ltems
Pipinq /Lo bels
Noted concerns
Lost Rodon Test (ot
leosl every 2
yeors)

Sys. #3 Monitor WC"
Seoled ltems
Pipinq/Lobels
Noted concerns
Lost Rodon Test (ot
leost every 2
yeors)

Sys. #4 Monitor WC"
Seoled ltems
Pipinq/Lobels
Noted concerns
Lost Rodon Test (ot
leost every 2
yeors)



DATES )

MAINTBNANCE ITEMS
The mitigation fan is running and is not
"screeching" or hot.
The manometer is present and there is
sufficient W.C.
A static pressure reading was taken and
recorded in the table.
The collection chamber is intact, without
cracks or missing sealant.

Piping is intact and free of cracks. No joints
are loose or open.
Fire collars and intumescent fire caulk is intact
The piping remains securely bracketed or
secured.
The circuit breaker is functional and is
switched to the "On" position.
The wiring to the fan is intact and free of
damage.
The fan is securely connected to the power
source.
The flexible rubber couplings are free from
cracks or damage.
The system is free of signs of weather damage
or vandalism.



102 E Cook St, New London, Wl 54961
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'.i;ii fantech'
a 5ystemair company

Rn 4EC-4 lnline Radon Fan

Radon Fan, lnline, 4.5" Pipe, 4.25" max SP
Item #: 99923

Varianl:120V 1- 60Hz

@*
ri.6*-l
lt{ur I

EI*'!9fc

Rn4EC-4 Radon Fan is the most powerful product on the market for active

radon mitigation applications where high suction and high flow are required. ll is
an excellent solution for high radon levels, poor sub-slab communication,

multiple suction points and/or large sub slab footprint.

. Designed specilically for Active Soil Depressurization (ASD) mitigation

applications
. High Suction, High Flow
. Dial your suction in with a built-in speed conlrol
. Two solt anti-vibration couplers included
. Set up for a 4" PVC pipe
. For residential and commercial applications
. Air-tight housing - zero leakage
. UV resistant plastic housing
. UL Listed for safety and outdoor use
. HVI certified fan performance
. 5-year lactory warranty U*-m.@E#
Rn4EC-4 can create 4.75" ot suction while moving 20 clm, or moving from 200 lo
31 0 ctm when operating at only 0.5" ol suction.

lnherently efficient and operationally stable at full and reduced speeds, Rn 4EC-

4 fan arms the radon prolessional with installation methods not previously

Manufaclured from two molded plastic pieces seamlessly joined together. lt is inherently and permanently airtight ensuring no Radon gas leakage. A large waterlight

outdoors. Two anti-vibration couplers are included with the lan.

Technical parameters
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o
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Item name: Rn 4EC-4 lnline Radon Fanl Product link: https:/ishop,fantech.net/en-UsiproductPermalink?p=399892 | ltem #:99923 | Variant: 120V 1'60H2 | Document
type: Product card I Created on:2021-08-30 | Generated by: Fantech Online Catalogue I Language: English

Page 1 of 6



Normlnal dala

Voltage (nominal)

Frequency

Phase(s)

lnput power

lnput current

lmpeller speed

Air llow

Protection/Classilicalion

120

60

1-

169

2.1

4,084

max 555

w

r.p.m.

cfm

Hz

Enclosure class, molor

lnsulation class

Certificate

Dlmenslons and weights

lP54

HVl, cULus

Weight 7.8 tb

type: Product card I Created on: 2021-0&30 | Generated by: Fantech Online Catalogue I Language: English
Page 2 ol 6



Performance

Performance curve

in, wg,

34O cfrn0m406080100im1,$

Hydraullc data

Required air llow

Required static pressure

Working air flow

Working static pressure

Air density

Power

Fan control - RPM

Cunent

Airflow efliciency

Control voltage

Supply voltage

0.075 tb/tr3

lype: Product card I Created on: 2021-0&30 | Generated by: Fantech Online Catalogue I Language: English
Page 3 of 6



Performances

Model Speed

Rn4EC-4 I 00..

80%

60..,

Dimensions

HVI Certilied Ratino{s)

Clrl Vollage High Stalic/Low Flow

lnch WC CFM W

10v 4.5 39 141

8V 3.14 31 84

6V 1.56 20 33

Low StaticiHioh Flow

lnch WC CFM W

0.2 320 17 4

0.2 300 135

0.2 210 5?

c

NOTE: Performance is based orr 4 inclr diameter ducting.

B

r-A -l

D

I 1tl (235)

9 1/4 (235)

9 114 (235)

Fl- -l

D

E

-l
G

Model A

Rn2EC 4 15132 i114)

Rn4EC-3 5 718 (149)

Rn4EC-4 5 7/B (149)

Dimensions in inches (mm).

B

1 0 (254)

11 1t2 1292t

1t 1.2 ,2q?\

c

1 1'4 \3?J

1 1t4 (32)

1 1t4 {32\

4 (1021

4 (1021

3 112 (89)

4 112 i114t

G

6 {152)

6 (152)

F

type: Product card I Created on: 2021-08-30 I Generated by: Fantech Online Catalogue I Language: English
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Motor

Wiring

Potentiometer 1e0 V Supply
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Documents

. 142001 RN2EC.RN4.EC OIPM EN FR.PDF

Itenr name: Rn 4EC-4 lnline Radon Fanl Proouct li4k: https://shop.fantech I ltern #:99923 I Varianlr 120V 1- 60Hz I Document
type: Product card I Created on: 2021-08-30 j Generated by: Fantech Online Catalogue i Language: English
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former dry-cleaning
machine

Boiler room

storage rooms

Bathroom

SSDS SYSTEM LAYOUT
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From: The Hartford Services Team <agency.services@thehartford.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 7:24 AM 
To: Kroeninger, Krista L 
Subject: Request for Information 
 
 

 

The Hartford Service Center Team 
 

 

  
 

 
  
 

 

 
  

An Important Message from The Hartford 
  
 

 

 

  

Review the attached document received by The Hartford Commercial Business 
Insurance Center. 
  

Please return this information to agency.services@thehartford.com. 
If your request does not belong to the Commercial Business Center, we will ensure that it is 
delivered to the right Hartford area for service.  

  

 

  

Please give us the correct policy number. This policy number will not go in our system. 
Thank you 

  
 

 

 

  

  

—  Do not reply to this email directly  —  
  

Our vision is to be an exceptional company celebrated for financial performance, character and 
customer service. Learn more about our company, our products and our people at 
http://www.TheHartford.com.  
  

Sincerely,  
The Hartford Services Team  
1-877-853-2582 (Agency Callers)  
1-866-467-8730 (Policyholders)  
Agency.Services@TheHartford.com (All Customers)  

  
 

 

 

Privacy Policy  |  Terms of Use  |  TheHartford.com  
  

This email was sent to: krista.kroeninger@terracon.com 
  

Attached: 4110920210830000803001Original-email.zip 
You'll require Adobe® Reader in order to open PDF attachements. Download a free version of Adobe® Reader to 
your computer. 
  

This email was sent by: The Hartford. 3600 Wiseman Blvd. San Antonio, TX 78251, United States © 2021. All 
Rights Reserved. 
  
 

  

  
 

 
 
*************************************************************************************
***************** 
This communication, including attachments, is for the exclusive use of addressee and may contain 

mailto:agency.services@thehartford.com?subject=Request%20For%20Change:%20Response
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.TheHartford.com__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-g4Do7-E$
mailto:agency.services@thehartford.com?subject=Request%20For%20Change:%20Response
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.thehartford.com/online-privacy-policy?cmp=EMC-COM-A0014-1606671__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-0f5ax2E$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.thehartford.com/legal-notice?cmp=EMC-COM-A0014-1606671__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-tJGLQL8$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/thehartford.com/contact-the-hartford/insurance-contacts?cmp=EMC-COM-A0014-1606671__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-PzJXP94$
mailto:krista.kroeninger@terracon.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/get.adobe.com/reader/__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-ZcFx18s$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.thehartford.com/__;!!JrcuqBw_IQ!3tb7_7UUF_LcLwBpDXYMG_DiaBFcY9nVFJnRImATuA7fOgUfbrd7chn39ArRN_k-ePpCBX8$


From: Kroeninger, Krista L <Krista.Kroeninger@terracon.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 30, 2021 9:29 AM 
To: Services, Agency (Comm Lines, San Antonio/SCIC) 
Subject: FW: Important information regarding your recent service request to The 

Hartford for policy: 86SBAPH1140 [CONFIDENTIAL] (Encrypted Delivery) 
Attachments: Drycleaners, Etc. New London, WI 
 
Hello, 
 
I am inquiring about the attached insurance policy. I sent in this information last month and have not 
heard back yet? Is there any information on the attached policy you can give me? 
 
Thanks,  
Krista  
 

From: Kroeninger, Krista L  
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2021 10:52 AM 
To: Services, Agency (Comm Lines, San Antonio/SCIC) <Agency.Services@thehartford.com> 
Subject: RE: Important information regarding your recent service request to The Hartford for policy: 
86SBAPH1140 [CONFIDENTIAL] (Encrypted Delivery) 
 
Attached is a photo of the policy card we received. Hope this helps!  
 
Thanks Again,  
 
Krista Kroeninger  
Staff Geologist I Milwaukee  
Terracon  
9856 South 57th Street I Franklin, WI 53132   
P 414-423-0255 I F 414-423-0566 I D 414-209-7651 
krista.kroeninger@terracon.com I www.terracon.com  

 
 

From: Services, Agency (Comm Lines, San Antonio/SCIC) <Agency.Services@thehartford.com>  
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2021 10:49 AM 
To: Kroeninger, Krista L <Krista.Kroeninger@terracon.com> 
Subject: Important information regarding your recent service request to The Hartford for policy: 
86SBAPH1140 [CONFIDENTIAL] (Encrypted Delivery) 
 
Good morning, 
 
I have heard back from the Department that handles Archived policies and they were not able to 
pull up a policy with the number that was provided – 86SBAPH1140. Perhaps there is a letter or 
number that is incorrect. If you could please verify the policy number and confirm with us on 
what it is at your earliest convenience. 
 
Thank you, 
 



KELLEY SCHRIVER 
Customer Relations Specialist I 
Business Insurance Service Operations 

 

The Hartford 
8711 University East Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28213 
Policy Holders: 866-467-8730 
Agency.Services@thehartford.com 

www.thehartford.com 
www.facebook.com/thehartford 
twitter.com/thehartford 

Did you know that you can view documents, pay 
bills, request certificates and more at your 
convenience by logging in to My Account? 

  

 

    

We care about meeting your service expectations. Did I 
provide you with a great experience? Please feel free to 
send any feedback on my service to 
lauren.dobrowolski@thehartford.com. 

  

 
 
 
*************************************************************************************
***************** 
This communication, including attachments, is for the exclusive use of addressee and may contain 
proprietary, confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, 
copying, disclosure, dissemination or distribution is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail, delete this communication and destroy 
all copies. 
 
*************************************************************************************
***************** 






